NOTICE FOR CALLING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
CYIENT DLM PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U31909TG1993PTC141346

Registered office at, Cyient Limited 3rd floor, Plot No. 11, Software Units Layout Infocity, Madhapur,
Telangana 500081 India.

NOTICE is hereby given that the 29t General Meeting of the Members of Cyient DLM Private Limited will
be held on Thursday, the 28™, July 2022 at 10:00 AM at the registered office of the company at Cyient
Limited 3rd floor, Plot No. 11, Software Units Layout Infocity, Madhapur, Telangana 500081 India to
transact the following business are to be transacted:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. The audited financial statements of the company for the financial year ended 31 March 2022,
together with the reports of the board of directors and the auditors thereon.

2. Toappoint adirector in place of Mr. Ajay Aggarwal, Director (02565242) who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as a Director liable to retire by rotation

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3.INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY AND AMEND CLAUSE V OF THE
MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 61 read with Section 64 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-
enactment thereof) and the rules framed there under, the consent of the members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company from existing
Rs.4,75,00,000 ( Rupees Four Crores Seventy Five Lakhs) divided into 47,50,000 (Forty Seven lakhs
Fifty Thousand) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each to Rs. 10,00,00,000 ( Rupees Ten Crores)
divided into 1,00,00,000 (One Crore) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each ranking pari passu
in all respect with the existing Equity Shares of the Company.

"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 61 and 64 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof)
and the rules framed there under, the consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded for substituting Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company with the
following clause.



V. The authorised share capital of the company is Rs.10,00,00,000 [Rupees Ten Crores only] divided into
1,00,00,000 [One Crore] equity shares of Rs.10 each.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board be and is
hereby authorised to take all such actions and to give all such directions as may be necessary or
desired and to accept any modifications in the above proposal as may be required under law and also
settle any questions or difficulties that may arise in respect of Increase in Authorized shares Capital
and further to do all such acts and execute such deeds and documents and writings in connection
with the Increase in Authorized shares Capital, as may be necessary.

Date: 01.07.2022 For CYIENT DLM PRIVATE LIMITED
Place: Hyderabad

F(L SV il( kiz

Parvati KR
Company Secretary

NOTES:

e A member, entitled to attend and vote at General Meeting, is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend
and vote instead of himself/herself on a poll and a proxy need not be a Member of the Company. The
instrument of Proxy in order to be valid, duly completed and singed must be deposited at the
registered officer of the Company at least 48 hours before the commencement of the Extraordinary
General Meeting.

¢ Members / Proxies should bring the Attendance slips duly filled in for identification for attending the
meeting.



EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
(Pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013)

ITEM NO. 3: INCREASE IN THE AUTHORISE SHARE CAPITAL

In order to mobilize funds for the working capital requirements of the Company, it is proposed to
increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company from existing Rs.4,75,00,000 ( Rupees Four
Crores Seventy Five Lakhs) divided into 47,50,000 (Forty Seven lakhs Fifty Thousand) Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each to Rs. 10,00,00,000 ( Rupees Ten Crores) divided into 1,00,00,000 (One
Crore) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten) each ranking pari passu in all respect with the existing
Equity Shares of the Company.

In view of the aforesaid requirement, your Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out in Item
no. 3 of the notice for your approval by means of an Ordinary Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their relatives is in any way concerned or interested
in the resolution set out in the notice except to the extent of shares held by them in the Company.

Date: 01.07.2022
Place: Hyderabad For CYIENT DLM PRIVATE LIMITED

P(\-\ N (‘\{L.(‘ ki

Parvati KR
Company Secretary



BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Directors of Cyient DLM private limited with an immense pleasure present the board's report on the
Business and Operation of the Company along with audited financial statement for the year ended 31st

March 2022.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

(Amount in 2 millions)

PARTICULARS 2021-22 2020-21
Revenue 7,205.33 6,280.28
Other Income 79.51 88.83
Total Income 7,284.84 6,369.11
Expenses

Operating Expenditure 6584.68 6028.54
Depreciation and amortization expense 192.86 184.62
Impairment of non-current assets - -

Total Expenses 6777.54 6213.16
Profit before tax (PBT) 507.30 155.95
Current tax 96.35 5.03
Deferred tax 13.00 32.78
Profit after Tax (PAT) 397.95 118.14

Balance brought forward

Profit available for appropriation

APPROPRIATIONS

Dividend

Tax on Dividend

Balance carried to Balance Sheet

Balance brought forward

2. OPERATIONS:

The Company has posted a turnover of INR (Mn 7205.33) for FY 2022

3. OUTLOOK:

The manufacturing industry outlook remains positive, particularly in the telecommunications,
medical, defense, and transportation markets. The synergy we get from Cyient is expected to bring
more build to specifications project which helps to increase our profitability.




We expect to witnhess a strong growth across our DLM business with orders mainly from aerospace
and defense, medical and industrial segments.

. STATE OF AFFAIRS/COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE

Cyient DLM is focusing on the products specific to local Indian market as well as global market in various
segments. The Company has proved its credentials in various segments including Aerospace & Defense,
Medical, Industrial, Transportation & Telecom segment.

The company has already delivered high reliability products characterized by high-mix/high-tech, flexible
volume requirements to various customers. Inits endeavor to offer one-stop-shop solutions and to
cater to the high standards of the Aerospace & Defense markets, the Company is at the forefront,
creating partnerships and bringing proven competencies from across the world in critical applications and
processes which operate on an Offset-compliant model.

There has been no change in the business of the Company during the financial year ended
31stMarch, 2022

. ACHIEVEMENTS:

Company has participated various seminars and continued to excel inits field.

DIVIDEND:
The Company has not paid any dividend for the year ended 31st March, 2021

PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits under the Companies Act, 2013 within the meaning of
Chapter V of the Act 2013, for the year ended 31st March 2021.

EARNING PER SHARE

The basic Earnings per Share stood at ¥ 291.11 for the year ended 31st march 2022.

. TRANSFER TO RESERVE

The Company has not transferred any amount to reserves during the year under review

10.COVID 19

The FY 2022 being the second year of the COIVID-19 pandemic, the Company has considered
internal and external sources of information up to date of approval of these financial statements in
evaluating possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to Covid-19 on the carrying




11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

amounts of trade and unbilled receivables, investments, goodwill and intangible assets. The
Company is confident about the recoverability of these assets.

SHARE CAPITAL

The authorised share capital of the company is 4,750,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each and the issued
and subscribed share capital of the company is 1,367,000 fully paid up equity shares of ¥ 10 each as
on 31st march 2022.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Declaration by independent director.

The Company has received necessary declaration from each independent director under Section
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he/ she meets the criteria of independence laid down in
Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013

POLICY ON DIRECTOR’'S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION

The Board has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee in terms of Section 178 (1),
who would be responsible for identifying Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, if any, their
appointment, removal and fixing their remuneration, amongst others. The same is enclosed as
Annexure A.

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETING HELD DURING THE YEAR

Duringthe FY 2022, six (6) meetings of the board were held. The maximum interval between any two
meetings did not exceed 120 days, as prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

COMMITTES OF THE BOARD

As required under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 as on March 31, 2022, the Board has
the following committees:

e Audit Committee;

e Nomination and Remuneration Committee;
e CSRCommittee

e Administrative Committee

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the
design or operation was observed.




17.CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Your company believes in giving back to society in some measure that is proportionate to its success
in business. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) aims at balancing the needs of all stakeholders.
The company’s CSR initiative goes beyond charity and believes that as a responsible company it
should take into account its impact on society as much as creating business impact. The CSR
initiatives are conducted through Cyient Foundation. Details annexed in Annexure “B"

18.HOLDING COMPANY:
Cyient DLM Private Limited is 100% subsidiary of Cyient Limited

19.AUDITORS

1. Statutory Auditors

At the 27th Annual General Meeting (the 'AGM’) the members approved the appointment of S.R.
Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101049W/E-300004) as
Statutory Auditors of the company to hold office for a period of five years from the conclusion of
that AGM till the conclusion of the 32" AGM, subject to ratification of their appointment by
Members at every AGM, if so required under the Act.

The requirement to place the matter relating to appointment of auditors for ratification by Members
at every AGM has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May
7, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is Being proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory
auditors at the ensuing AGM.

2. Secretarial Auditors

The Board has appointed Mr. S. Chidambaram as the Secretarial Auditors for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 is annexed
as Annexure 'C.

20.AUDITOR'S REPORT & SECRETARIAL AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Auditors’ Report for fiscal 2022 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark. The Report is enclosed with the financial statements in this Annual Report.

The Secretarial Auditors' Report for fiscal 2022 does not contain any qualification, reservation or
adverse remark.

During the FY 2022, the statutory auditors and secretarial auditor have not reported any instances
of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit Committee under
section 143(12) of the Companies Act




21.VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has formulated vigil mechanism for employees including directors of the Company to
report genuine concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud and any violation of the
Company's Code of Business Conduct or Ethics policy. The Policy is disclosed on the Company's
website.

22.INFORMATION ON CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT,

TECHNOLOGY ABSORBTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING

Conservation of Energy:

During the year under review, the Company embarked on certain measures to effectively achieved
areduction in the power as well through utilization of solar power in its manufacturing plants.

Technology Absorption

23.

The Company introduced In Line Aqueous Cleaning System to its process for High Performance
Cleaning system; Energy Efficient; Suitable for Mass manufacturing; Preferred system; Four (4)
Times higher capacity with respect to Batch cleaning; Better Drying performance; Low Chemical
waste to provide sophisticated process solutions to aero-defense customers.

And also introduced Deep Freezer, Ultra Deep Freezer Cabinets are in conformity with all
requirements of industry for economic way to create Temperature below freezing point to suit
various standards application in the field of, science & research for storage & testing in biology,
anatomy, chemistry & in many other fields, for industry and science.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the board of directors, to the best of their
knowledge and ability, confirm that:

a) Inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed
and there are no material departures;

b) They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for that period;

c) They have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) They have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;




24.

25.

26.

27.

e) They have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and such internal
financial controls are adequate and operating effectively

f) They have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES & INVESTMENT
Thereis no loans, guarantees or investments made in terms of section 186 of Companies act, 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

Details of material related party transactions under Section 188 of the Act 2013 read with the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, are given in Annexure to this reportin
the prescribed form.

PARTICULARS RELATING TO POSH

The company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 during the FY 2022.

With majority of work force Working from home, Organization had reworked on the POSH connect
initiatives and ensured Virtual connects periodically with associates to build awareness among
them.

List of Initiatives under POSH for 2021-22

® Posh Panel connect every quarter

e Digital compliance of POSH

e Awareness sessions to associates through Virtual platforms and also through other business
monthly meetings

® POSH panel have been nominated for various training There are no complaints during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The company pursues a comprehensive risk management programme as an essential element of
sound corporate governance and is committed to continuously embedding risk management in its
daily culture.

This process is followed in five steps:
e |dentify risks and opportunities
® assess risk and performance for key processes




28.

29.

e evaluate the risk impact across business operations
e develop mitigation plan for the risks identified and

e monitor the risks at regular intervals and report to

e the Risk Management Committee

The company has classified the risks into five categories:
i. Strategic

ii. Reputational

iii. Operational

iv. Financial

v. Compliance/Litigation.

Eachidentified risk is assessed according to its probability and impact on the company. The Board of
Directors has formed an internal risk management committee to identify, evaluate, mitigate and
monitor the risk management in the company. The committee comprises cross-functional
membership from the senior management of the company.

The primary objectives of the Committee are to assist the Board in the following:

® To provide an oversight for all categories of risk and promulgate risk culture in the organization.

e To adopt leading risk management practices in the industry and manage risk proactively at
organizational level.

e Help to develop a culture of the enterprise that all levels of people understand risks.

e Provide input to management of risk appetite and tolerance and monitor the organization’s risk on
an ongoing basis.

e Approve and review risk management plan which includes company's risk management structure,
framework,

methodologies adopted guidelines and details of assurance and review of the risk management
process.

e Monitor risks and risk management capabilities and mitigation plans.

SIGNIFCANT & MATERIAL ORDERS

There are no orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern
status and Company's operations in future

COST RECORDS & COST AUDIT

The provision of Cost audit as per section 148 applicable on the Company and company has
maintained proper records and account of the same as required under the act. Cost Auditor has been
appointed.




30.APPLICATION UNDERIBC,2016

31.

Cyient DLM supplied Printed Circuit Board for the Solar Energy Products to “Alpha
Tech” Based on the various Confirmed Purchase Orders placed by the Alpha Tech from
the financial year 2014 -15 and continued up to 2016 (last Finished Goods Invoice was on
28t June, 2016). Cyient DLM made investments in raw materials, work in progress,
tinished goods, borne inventory carrying cost, placed open purchase orders on their
suppliers, supplied goods to the Alpha Tech and also undertook liability to the
Commercial Tax Department owing to non-submission of Form H by the Alpha Tech.
Alpha Tech cancelled the firm purchase orders. “Cyient DLM” and “Alpha Tech” had
several meetings and minutes of meeting signed by the Parties on 24th June, 2016. But the
conditions mentioned in that minutes was not completely met by “Alpha Tech”. Due to
the cancellation of Firm Purchase Order “Cyient DLM” has incurred total expenditure
of Rs. 4,54,07,712/-. “Cyient DLM” has approached the Hon 'ble National Company Law
Tribunal, Bangalore and filed a Company Petition No C.P.No.(IB)/49/BB/2018 under
Section 9 of the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code. NCLT acknowledged the debt and
admitted the case for further hearing. Parallel, Writ petition was filed by Navsemi at Hon’ble
High Court of Karnataka with Writ Petition No. 30393-94/2019

During the course of submissions before the Hon’ble NCLT, both the Parties entered into
settlement deed effective from 22nd February, 2022. Accordingly, Parties have agreed to settle
the matter for INR 3,10,00,000/- (Rupees Three Crore Ten Lakhs only). Hence Cyient DLM has
taken back its application under IBC.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
received from the banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors and members during the
year under review. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for
the committed services by the Company's executives, staff and workers.

For and on Behalf of the Board

Rajendra Velagapudi
Managing Director &CEO
DIN: 06507627

Date:20%" July, 2022

Place: Hyderabad

Ajay Aggarwal
Director

DIN: 02565242
Date: 20t July, 2022

Place: Hyderabad




Annexure A

POLICY ON DIRECTOR’S APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION
Board constituted a “Nomination & Remuneration Committee” with following Members;

a. Mr. Krishna Bodanapu, Director
b. Mr. Ajay Aggarwal
c. Mr. Rajendra Velagapudi

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee includes roles, responsibilities and powers as set
forth:

1. Toidentify persons, who are qualified to be Directors;

2. Torecommend to Board their appointment and removal and shall carry out evaluation of every
Director’s performance;

3. Toformulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
Director;

4. Torecommend to the Board a policy relating to remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees;

5. Any otherresponsibilities as may be assigned by the Board from time to time.

The powers so conferred shall remain intact unless and until modified or altered or amended further by way
of a resolution passed by the Board of Directors of the Company.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Levels of remuneration are determined such that they attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality
required to run the company successfully. All board level compensation is approved by the shareholders
and disclosed separately in the financial statements. The annual compensation of the executive directors
is approved by the board within the overall limits set by the shareholders at their meetings.

Consistent with globally accepted governance practices, the company has ushered in flexibility in respect
of payment of remuneration to Independent Directors. The remuneration payable to Independent
Directors is linked to their attendance at the meetings of the Board or committees thereof, their
contributions at the meetings or otherwise, and on their position in various Committees of the board,
whether as that of Chairman or Member. The board approves the commission paid to directors
individually, based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration committee. The
company pays remuneration by way of salary, perquisites and allowances to the Managing Director & CEO
as approved by the shareholders of the company.




ANNEXUREB

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities

A brief outline of the company’'s CSR policy:

The Company believes in the philosophy of returning to society as a measure of gratitude for what it has
taken fromit. In view of this, the company’s corporate social responsibility (CSR) aims to extend beyond
charity and enhance social impact.

The company's CSR mission:

Achieving long-term, holistic development of community around us by being committed to creating and
supporting programs that bring about sustainable changes through education and health care systems.

The company's CSR vision:

e To help underprivileged children to access the quality of education and
e Toparticipate in projects with business aligned innovation

Company has to spend Rs. 13 Lakhs for this financial year as per the specified norms.

In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial
years or any part thereof, reasons for not spending the amount:

Company reported loss during last previous years. The remaining amount shall be spent in the subsequent
years.

A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy,
follows CSR objectives and Policy of the company:

The CSR committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of the CSR Policy follows the CSR
objectives and Policy of the company.




Annexure C
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the financial year ended 315t March 2022

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the companies act 2013 and rule no.9 of the Companies
(appointment and Remuneration to Managerial Personnel] Rules 2014

To

The Members

Cyient DLM Private Limited

(CIN: U31909TG1993PTC141346)

Cyient Limited

3rd floor, Plot No. 11, Software Units Layout Infocity,
Madhapur, Telangana 500081 India.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by CYIENT DLM PRIVATE LIMITED. Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other

records maintained by the company and also the information provided and declarations made by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit. |
hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31st March, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the

Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner

and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by

"the Company" for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of:

e The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

e The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

e Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commerecial
Borrowings;

e Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948 and Employees' State Insurance (General) Regulations,
1950;

e The Employees" Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and The Employees'
Provident Funds Scheme, 1952;

e The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 and the Payment of Bonus Rules, 1965




e The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 and the Contract Labour (Regulation and
Abolition) Central Rules, 1971;

e Income Tax Act, 1961 and rules made thereunder;

e Service Tax Act, 1994 and rules made thereunder;

e The Information and Technologies Act, 2000.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;

The Following Acts, Rules and Regulations, Guidelines are not applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period:

e The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

o The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘'SEBI Act’):-

o The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

o The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

o The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009;

o The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

o The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008;

o The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

o The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

o The Securities and Exchange Board of- India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. | further report that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The
changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. Adequate notice was given to all directors to schedule
the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance for
meetings other than those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting. As per the minutes, the decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously. We further report
that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines etc.

Date: 16.04.2022

S Chidambaram
Practicing Company Secretary




FCS No. 3935
CP No:2286
UDIN: FO03935D000140258

To the Members,
CYIENT DLM PRIVATE LIMITED (CIN: U31909TG1993PTC141346)
My Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1 The maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Further, the

Company is also responsible for devising proper systems and process to ensure the compliance of the various
statutory requirements and Governance systems.

2 Itis the responsibility of the Management of the Company to ensure that the systems and process devised for
operating effectively and efficiently.

3 My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

4 | have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the
correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. | believe that the process and practices followed provide a
reasonable basis for my opinion.

5 Wherever required, | have obtained the Management representations about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events etc.

6 The Compliance of the provisions of other applicable laws, rules and regulations is the responsibility of the
management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

7 The secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

S. Chidambaram

Practicing Company Secretary:
FCS No. 3935

C P No: 2286

UDIN: F003935D00014025
Place: Hyderabad

Date: 16.04.2022




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP Lhih Fioor “NORTH Lo

83/1, Raidurgam
ad - 500 032, India

91 40 6141 6000

Chartered Accountants

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Cyient DLM Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cyient DLM Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
“Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements® section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Director’s Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

tes LLP, a Limited Liabiiity Partrership witn LLP
e 27, Camac Street, Block B, 3rd Fioor, Kolkat




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these {inancial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
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inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Com pany to

cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (*“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

(e)

()

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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.. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer note 28 to the financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iil.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.  (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

have been advanced or loaned or invested either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds by the company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Com pany (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds

(c)

have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: and

Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

V. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number:101049W/E300004

,/-

—

Qk\ 1A
per-Shafnikar Srinivisan
Partner

Membership Number: 2 13271
UDIN: 22213271 AHLKWB8803

Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: April 20, 2022
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date on the Financial Statements of Cyient DLM Private

Limited (“the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangibles assets.

(b) All property, plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the
management during the year but there is a regular programme of verification
them once in three years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification.

(©) There are no immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee),
held by the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment including right
of use assets or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2022.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i1) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. There were no discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) As disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from
banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.
The quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the books of accounts of the Company. The Company has not
been sanctioned working capital limits from financial institutions during any
point of time of the year.

(111) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of
loans, stood guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(iii)(a) to 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
there are no loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which
provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act are applicable and accordingly, the
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requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted
any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73
to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent
applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company
pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of
cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, related to the manufacture of
electronic manufacturing solutions, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not,
however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, duty of customs and other statutory dues applicable to it.
The provisions relating to sales tax, service tax, value added tax, duty of excise
and cess are not applicable to the Company. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of customs and other statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable.

(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, duty of customs and other statutory dues have not been deposited
on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of Forum Period to Amount
statute the dues where the which the involved
dispute is | amount relates (Rs. In
pending Mmn)
Income Tax | Income CIT FY 2016-17 5.11
Act, 1961 tax (Appeals) FY 2017-18 12.00
(viii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously

unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix) (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the
Company.
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(e) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

H The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ix) (f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public
offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or optionally
convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us
in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given by the Management,
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the Company and
accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar
as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) (a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report,
for the period under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors
or persons connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause
3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of
1934) are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the
immediately preceding financial year respectively.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and
accordingly requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 35 to the financial
statements, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies
Act (the Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135
of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required
to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section
(6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 27
to the Standalone Financial Statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Fil‘n?egiﬁrz ion Number: 101049W/E300004
— &a;_(«j

per Shankar Srinivasan
Partner '
Membership Number: 213271
UDIN: 22213271 AHLKWB8803
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: April 20, 2022
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the financial statements of
Cyient DLM Private Limited (“the Company”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements of Cyient DLM
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI™). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements s a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
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assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004

per Shamkar Srinivasan

Partner

Membership Number: 213271
UDIN: 22213271 AHLKWB8803
Place of Signature: Hyderabad
Date: April 20, 2022




Cyient DLM Private Limited
(CIN No.: U31909TG1993PTC141346)
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(All amounts in T milllons, except share and per share datz and where otherwise stated)
Particulars Notes As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3A 1,294.83 1,400.89
Right of use assets 38 382.86 420,11
Capital work-in-progress 3C iz9a 23,16
Goodwill 4 30,30 30.30
Other intangible assets 5 14.12 4.94
Financial assets
(a) Investments 6 3.22 3.22
{b) Other financial assets 7 38.80 46.20
Deferrad tax assets {net) 17.2 38.98 50.86
Income tax assets 173 5.03 5.84
Other non-current assets 8 8.11 35.59
Total non-current assets 1,850.16 2,021.11
Current assets
Inventories 9 2,695.62 1,554.47
Financial assets
{a) Trade recevables 10 1,523.25 2,203.83
{b) Cash and rash equivalents 11A 768.59 14€.69
|c) Other bank balances 11B 443,49 195.07
(d} Oner financial assets 7 22.33 30.93
Other current assers 8 459.70 238.21
Tatal current assets 5,918.98 41,429.20
Total assets 7,769.14 6,450.31 |
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity share capital 12 13.67 13,67
Other equity 13 75745 362.85
Total equity 771.12 376.52
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
pinangial liabilines
ial Borrowings 14 995.63 £840.00
{0} Lease habilities 3B 377.19 400.02
(c} Other financial liabilities 15 147.44 2105
AR\ ERVRT 16 59.61 53.78
WOther son carrent liabilities 18 260.83 17.44
[ Total von-current liabilities 1,840.70 1,154.49
Carrent liabilities
Financial Niahifites
(al Borrowinas 14 1,936.30 1,697.65
(b} Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and srmall enterprises 19 32.06 i 00,60
(il) total vutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 19 Y8929 1.8349.85
(c) Lease liabllities 3B £8.71 52,52
{d) Other financial liabilities 15 5.99 28,17
mcome tax liabilities (net) 17.3 60.63 713
Provisions 16 13.36 1Z.35
Cther current liabilities i8 1,155.48 1,173.23
Tatal current liabilities 5,157.32 4,6891.30
Total liabilities 6,998.02 6,073.72
Total equity and liabilities 7.769.14 6,450.31 |
Carporate infermation and significant accounting policies 182

Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
Ay per o report of even date

t a1 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP Forand on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Cyient DLM{Private Limited
Iy Al Firm regl jan number: 101049W/E 300004

N P

Ajay Aggarwal Rajendra Velagapudi

(C-LA!\.

Snankar Srinivas

Far Director Managing Direcior & CEQ
tiembersiio Ma.: 224271 (GIN - 02565242} (DIN - 06507527)
Peuvadi 192

Parvati K R
Company Secratary
[M.No. - AZ3584)

Prace: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
ate April 20, 2022 Date: April 20, 2022




Cyient DLM Private Limited
(CIN No.: U31909TG1993PTC141346)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in  millions, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

S Nates For the year ended For the year ended
il March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
INCOME
Revenue from operations 20 7,205.33 6,280.28
Other income 21 79.51 88.83
Total income 7,284.84 6,369.11
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 22 5,552.88 4,778.52
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress 23 (113.26) 174,41
Employee benefits expense 24 516.52 468.63
Finance costs 25 219.75 207.70
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 192,86 184.62
Other expenses 27 408.79 395,28
Total expenses 6,777.54 6,213.16
Profit/(loss) before tax 507.30 155.95
Tax expense
(a) Current tax 17.1(A) 96.35 5.03
(b) Deferred tax 17.1(A) 13.00 32.78

Total tax expense 109.35 37.81
Profit/(Loss) for the year 397.95 118.14
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to statement of profit or loss:

(i) Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability 29 (4.47) 1.84

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 17.1(B) 1.12 (0.52)
Total other comprehensive income for the year (3.35) 1.32
Total comprehensive income for the year 394.60 119.46
Earnings per equity share (par value of % 10 each) 31

Basic and diluted (%) 291.11 86.42
Corporate information and significant accounting policies 1&2

Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

’—‘*ﬁ\

Partner
Membership No.: 213271

Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 20, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Cyient DLM Private Limited

Ajay Aggarwal
Director

(DIN - 02565242)

PCLML'd-; IKE

Parvati KR

Company Secretary
(M.No. - A23584)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 20, 2022

L

-Rajendra Velagapudi
Managing Director & CEO
(DIN - 06507627)




Cyient DLV Private Limited
(CIN No.: U31909TG1993PTC141346)
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in % millions, except share and per share data and where atherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Particulars Note No's Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2020 12 13,67,000 13.67
Balance as at March 31, 2021 12 13,67,000 13.67
Balance as at March 31, 2022 12 13,67,000 13.67
B. Other Equity
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total
Note Securities premium General reserve Retained earnings

Balance as at April 1, 2020 92.09 3.72 147.58 243.39

Profit for the year 13 - - 118.14 118.14

Other comprehensive Income 13 - - 1.32 1.32
Balance as at March 31, 2021 52.09 3.72 267.04 362.85

Profit for the year 13 - - 397.95 397.95

Other comprehensive Income 13 - - {3.35) (3.35)
Balance at March 31, 2022 92.09 3.72 661.64 757.45

Corporate information and significant accounting policies
Accompanying notes farm an integral part of the financial statements
VA5 per our report of even date

For S.R. Batlibol & Assoclates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm registration number: 101049W/E300004

e 1

13
|ShankerSfinivasa
II‘»’ar‘tner

Membership No.: 213271

Place. Hyderabad
Date: April 20, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

;:;::\I;Dq Private Limited
: V &L‘/d B
Rajendra Velagapudi

Ajay Aggarwal
Managing Director & CEO

Director
(DIN - 02565242 (DIN - 0B507627)

Paurvecdi 1<
ParvatiK R
Company Secretary
(M.No. - A23584)

Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 20, 2022




Cyient DLM Private Limited
{CIN No.: U31909TG1993PTC141346)
Cash Flow Statement for the period ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in X millions, except share and per share data and whare otherwise stated)
Year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit/(loss) for the year 397.95 118.14

Adjustments for:

Tax expense 109.35 37.81
Depreciation and amortisation expense 192.86 184.62
Profit on sale of Plant, Property and Equipment [net) (0.94) .
Net unrealised exchange loss 15.45 27.92
Finance costs 219,75 207.70
Interest income (16.09) (17.55)
Expected credit |oss allowance/ [reversal), net (13.15) 8.68

Operating profit befare working capital changes 905.18 567.28
Changes in working capital
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Trade receivables 758.78 (1,722.86)
Inventories {1,141.15) 671.30
Other assets and other financial assets (181.92) 154.55
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade payables 7.65 820.72
Provisions and other liabilities 228.01 (123.21)
Cash generated from operations 576.55 367.78
Income taxes received/(paid), net {62.04) 0.73
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) 514.51 368.51
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment towards purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (84.14) (273.87)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 7.086 =
Movement in other bank balances (254.42) 231.80
Interest received 7.36 33.06
Net cash flow used in investing activities (B) (324.14) (9.01)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Praceeds from non current borrowings - 230,00
Repayment of non current borrowings e (15.79)
Proceeds fram current borrowings 2,551.91 1,645.17
Repayments of current barrowings (1,961.18) {2,136.20)
Repayment of |ease liabilities (56.96) {59.286)
Interest paid (102.24) (111.31)
Net cash flow from/{used in) financing activities (C) 431.53 (447.39)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 621.90 (87.89)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 146.69 234,58
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note (i) below) 768.59 146.69
Notes :
(i) Cash and cash equivalents comprises of: (refer note 114)
Balances with banks
in current accounts 707.29 146.62
Remittances in transit 61.29 -
Cash on hand 0.01 0.07
768.59 146.69
Accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Cylent DLM Private Limited
ICAl Firm regi jon number: 101049\W/E300004
'
tv{]’fo\
Ajay Aggarwal ajendra Velagapudi
Director Managing Director & CEQ
(DIN - 02565242) {DIN - 06507627}
P oL ULCL!'- kR
Parvati KR
Company Secretary
(M.No. - A23584)
Place: Hyderabad Place: Hyderabad
Date: April 20, 2022 Date: April 20, 2022




Cyient DLM Private Limited

CIN No.: U31909TG1993PTC141346

Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information:

The financial statements comprise financial statements of Cyient DLM Private Limited (formerly known as
‘Rangsons Electronics Private Limited’) (the ‘Company’) for the year ended March 31, 2022. The Company is a
private limited company domiciled in India, and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,
applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is at Cyient Limited, 3rd floor, Plot No. 11, Software
Layout Units, Infocity, Hyderabad, Telangana - 500081.

The Company is principally engaged in providing total electronic manufacturing solutions in the fields of medical,
industrial, automotive, telecommunication, defense and aerospace applications and machining of components
for aerospace, automotive and defense industries.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on April 20,
2022.

2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Statement of compliance:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) and presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule |1l to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant
Schedule Il1).

2.2 Basis of preparation & presentation:

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value a) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) and consistent with previous year subject to changes
in accounting policies. The financial statements are presented in INR, and all values are rounded to the nearest
millions, except when otherwise indicated.

Cyient Limited, the holding company, continues to provide operational and financial support to the Company to
enable it to carry on its business and meet the liabilities as they fall due. During the year, the Company has
achieved significant growth in its revenues and substantially improved its EBITDA. Further, based on the
turnaround strategy adopted by the Company, the management projects that the company will generate
sufficient cash in future. Based on the above, the management believes that the company will continue as a
going concern and thereby realize its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of its business.

Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

° Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in narmal operating cycle.

¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

» Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

° Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:
It is expected to be settled in narmal operating cycle




Cyient DLM Private Limited
CIN No.: U31909TG1993PTC141346

Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the
purpose of current or non - current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.3 Use of estimates:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures relating
to contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and
expenditure for the periods presented. The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the
financial statements are prudent and reasonable.

Future results could differ from these estimates — estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. The effects of changes in accounting estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the
period in which results are known and, if material, are disclosed in the financial statements.

Significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements such as:

® Impairment assessment of Goodwill

° Provision for income tax and recoverability of deferred tax assets

o Allowance for credit losses on receivables

® Provision for slow moving/ non-moving inventory

2.4 Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating units
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized directly
in statement of profit and loss. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in the subsequent
periods.




Cyient DLM Private Limited
CIN No.: U31909TG1993PTC141346

Notes forming part of the financial statements
(All amounts in million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of

the Company.

Transactions and balances

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions, Foreign-currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the exchange rate
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair value
are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in determining
net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled.

2.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. The initial cost of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price, including non-refundable duties and taxes net of any trade discounts and rebates.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes interest on borrowings (borrowing cost) directly attributable
to acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant
and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land, which are stated at
cost) and impairment losses, if any. Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives using the straight-
line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the
following categories of assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed, based on technical advice,
taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers warranties and
maintenance support.

Type of asset Useful life
Buildings Shorter of lease period or estimated useful lives
Plant & Machinery 5-15 Years
Tools & Equipment 5 Years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 Years
Electrical Installations 10 Years
Vehicles 10 Years
Computers 3 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years

Note 1:
- The useful life of Plant and Machinery is determined on Single Shift Basis. The multiple shift impact as
prescribed under Schedule Il to the Act, has been adopted.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

(All amounts in million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

- Based on the technical advice obtained stencils are depreciated over 5 years.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed periodically including at each financial year-
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

2.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortized over their estimated useful life on a straight-line basis as follows:

Type of asset Useful life
Computer software 3 years

An intangible asset is de-recognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use.
Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in ‘other income’ of statement of profit
and loss when the asset is de-recognized.

Amortization methods and useful lives are reviewed periodically at each financial year end.
2.8 Leases
Company as lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of
twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the
Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be
exercised.

i} Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
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(All amounts in million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of
the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The
right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer note 2.22.

ROU asset Useful lives
Leasehold land 19 years
Buildings 3-10 years

ii) Lease liabilities

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using
the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of the leases. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made or a change in the assessment of extension or termination options. Lease liabilities are remeasured with
a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if there is a modification, a change in the lease term),
a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine such lease payments).

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have
been classified as financing cash flows.

2.9 Income taxes:

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the taxable income based on the applicable
income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively,

The current tax and deferred tax calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate
taxable income.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognized if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit/loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year Is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax for the
year. MAT credit is recognized in accordance with tax laws in India as a deferred tax asset only to the extent that
is probable that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period i.e. the period for which
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Company reviews the MAT credit at each balance sheet date
and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is no longer convincing
evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

In the situations where one or more units in the Company are entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax
Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax laws prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions where they operate, no
deferred tax (asset or liability) is recognized in respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax
holiday period, to the extent the concerned entity’s gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax
holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the tax holiday period is
recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate. However, the Company restricts recognition
of deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences
which criginate first are considered to reverse first.

2.10 Inventories:
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted average basis. Net realizable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventaries less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventories are valued in accordance with the below method of valuation.

(i) Raw materials & consumables: Valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less. Cost includes purchase
costs and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

(ii) Stores and spares: Valued at cost. Cost includes purchase costs and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

(iii) Work in progress & finished Goods: Valued at cost or net realizable value whichever is less. Costs includes
direct material costs, wages and applicable overheads.

2,11 Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash comprises cash on hand, in bank and demand deposits with banks. The Company considers all highly liquid
financial instruments, which are readily convertible into cash and have original maturities of three months or
less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Such cash equivalents are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Cash flows are reported using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transaction of non- cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

i i
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(All amounts in million, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

2.12 Provisions and contingent liabilities

2.12,1 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.
Provisians are not recognized for future operating losses,

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be desired by the Company from
a contract are lower than unavoidable costs of meeting to future obligations under the contract and are
measured at the present value of lower than expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and expected cost of
terminating the contract.

2.12.2 Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. A contingent asset is neither recognized nor
disclosed in the financial statements.

2.13 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised, on the basis of approved contracts, when control of the
goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration entitled in

exchange for those goods or services. The Company is generally the principal as it typically controls the goods
or services before transferring them to the customer,

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the
customer, generally upon delivery of the goods. Revenue from rendering of services is recognised over time by
measuring the progress towards complete satisfaction of performance obligations at the reporting period.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration which the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange
for transferring distinct goods or services to a customer as specified in the contract, excluding amounts collected
on behalf of third parties (for example taxes and duties collected on behalf of the government). Consideration
is generally due upon satisfaction of performance obligations and a receivable is recognised when it becomes
unconditional. Variable consideration includes incentives, volume rebates, discounts etc., which is estimated at
contract inception considering the terms of various schemes with customers and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when
the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved. It is reassessed at end of
each reporting period.

Generally, the Company receives advances from few of its customers. Using the practical expedient in Ind AS
115, the Company does not adjust the promised amount of consideration for the effects of a significant financing
component if it expects, at contract inception, that the period between the transfer of the promised good or
service to the customer and when the customer pays for that good or service will be one year or less.
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2.14 Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.

2.15 Government grants/incentives

Government grants are recognized when there is a reasonable assurance that:
a) The Company will comply with the conditions attached to them; and
b) The grant will be received.

Export entitlements from government authorities are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the
right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in respect of the exports made by the
Company, and where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export
proceeds. Grants are recognized net of attributable expenses.

2.16 Employee benefit plans

Employee benefits include provided fund, employee's state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated
absences.

Post-employment obligations:
Defined contribution plans:

Contributions in respect of Employees Provident Fund and Pension Fund which are defined contribution
schemes, are made to a fund administered and managed by the Government of India and are charged as an

expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when service are rendered by the
employees.

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity:

The Company accounts for its liability towards Gratuity based on actuarial valuation made by an independent
actuary as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method. The liability recognized in the balance
sheet in respect of the gratuity plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the
reporting period less the fair value of the plant assets.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net balance of the defined obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in the
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur,
directly in other comprehensive income. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from plan amendments or curtailments are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past
service cost.
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Compensated absences:

The employees of the Company are entitled to compensate absences. The employees can carry-forward a
portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absence and utilize it in future periods or receive cash
compensation at retirement or termination of employment for the unutilized accrued compensated absence.
The Company records an obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the
services that increase this entitlement. The Company measures the expected cost of compensated absence
based on actuarial valuation made by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date on projected unit
credit method.

Other short-term employee benefits

Other short-term employee benefits and performance incentives expected to be paid in exchange for the
services rendered by employees are recognized during the period when the employee renders service.

2.17 Operating Segments

The Company's Chief operating decision maker is the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer who
evaluates Company’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance
indicators by business verticals and geographical segmentation of customers.

The company is engaged in in providing total electronic manufacturing solutions single operating segment "Total
electronic manufacturing solutions" which is considered as the primary business segment.

2,18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.
2.19 Financial instruments
a) Initial recognition:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately
in profit or loss.
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b) Subsequent Measurement:
(i) Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets

Classification of financial assets:

Financial assets carried at amortized cost;:

Afinancial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within
a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an irrevocable
election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair
value in other comprehensive income based on its business model.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit

or loss.
(ii) Financial liability:

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. For
trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either contingent consideration
recognized by the Company as an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

® Ithasbeenincurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or
® on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or
It is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
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Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the
financial liability and is included in the ‘Other income' line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, in which case
these effects of changes in credit risk are recognized in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the
fair value of liability is always recognized in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk that are recognized in other comprehensive income are reflected immediately in retained earnings
and are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial Liability subsequently measured at amortized cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortized
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are
subsequently measured at amortized cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest

expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs' line item

c) Foreign exchange gains and losses:

For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortized cost and FVTPL, the exchange
differences are recognized in profit or loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments in a
hedging relationship.

Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign
currency rates are recognized in other comprehensive income. g

For the purposes of recognizing foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated as
financial assets measured at amortized cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortized cost are
recognized in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortized cost at the
end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortized cost
of the instruments and are recognized in ‘Other income’

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at
FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognized in profit or
loss.

d) De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities:

Financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,

or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another party. If the Company retains substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of a transferred
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financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or loss if such gain or loss would
have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized
and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in statement of profit and loss.

2.20 Determination of fair values

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and
assumptions that are based on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used
to determine fair value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes.
All methods of assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually
be realized.

Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Company considers the characteristics of asset or liability of market participants when pricing the asset or
liability at the measuremenl date.

Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions

that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realizable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2, or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:
e Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;
e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and
e Llevel 3inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

2.21 Impairment of assets

Financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through statement of profit and loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase
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credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the amount that
is required to be recognised as an impairment gain or loss in statement of profit and loss.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognized from initial recognition of the receivables.
As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss of its trade
receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the
trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. The ECL loss allowance (or reversal) during the
year is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-financial assets

Intangible assets, Intangible assets under development, property, plant and equipment and ROU assets are
evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does
not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable
amount is determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs. Intangible assets under development are tested
for impairment annually. The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast
calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated.

If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized in the statement of profit and loss
is measured by the amount by which the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount
of the asset. An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the asset is increased to its revised
recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been

determined (net of any accumulated amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for
the asset in prior years.

2.22 Earnings per share:

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.23 New and amended standards

The Company applied for the first-time aforesaid new standards and amendments, which are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. The Company has not early adopted any other
standard or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective.
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(i)

(i)

(iii)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to Ind AS 109, Ind AS 107, Ind AS

104 and Ind AS 116

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects

when an interbank offered rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest

rate (RFR). The amendment includes the following practical expedients:

- A practical expedient to require contractual changes, or changes to cash flows that are
directly required by the reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate,
equivalent to a movement in a market rate of interest

- Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship being discontinued

- Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable
requirement when an RFR instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company. The Company
intends to use the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable.

Conceptual framework for financial reporting under Ind AS issued by ICAI

The Framework is not a Standard and it does not override any specific standard. Therefore,
this does not form part of a set of standards pronounced by the standard-setters. While, the
Framework is primarily meant for the standard-setter for formulating the standards, it has
relevance to the preparers in certain situations such as to develop consistent accounting
policies for areas that are not covered by a standard or where there is choice of accounting
policy, and to assist all parties to understand and interpret the Standards.

The amendments made in following standards due to Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting under Ind AS includes amendment of the footnote to the definition of an equity
instrument in Ind AS 102- Share Based Payments, footnote to be added for definition of
liability i.e. definition of liability is not revised on account of revision of definition in conceptual
framework in case of Ind AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets etc.

The MCA has notified the Amendments to Ind AS consequential to Conceptual Framework
under Ind AS vide notification dated June 18, 2021, applicable for annual periods beginning
on or after April 1, 2021. Accordingly, the Conceptual Framewaork is applicable for preparers
for accounting periods beginning on or after April 1,2021.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.
Ind AS 116: COVID-19 related rent concessions

MCA issued an amendment to Ind AS 116 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30,
2021 to update the condition for lessees to apply the relief to a reduction in lease payments
originally due on or before June 30, 2022 from June 30, 2021. The amendment applies to
annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. In case a lessee has not yet
approved the financial statements for issue before the issuance of this amendment, then the
same may be applied for annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1,2020.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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(iv)

Amendment to Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28

The definition of “Recoverable amount” is amended such that the words “the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use” are replaced with “higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use”. The consequential amendments are made
in Ind AS 105, Ind AS 16 and Ind AS 28.

These amendments had no impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2022, as below:

(v)

(vi)

Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment —

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of
testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly
attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1,
2022. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no significant impact on its
financial statements.

Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets —

The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract). The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on
or after April 1, 2022, although early adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and the impact is not expected to be material.
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3B, Leases
(a) Right of use assets:
Particulars Leasehald land Buildings Total
Balance as at April 1, 2020 405.69 47.00 452,69
Additions - 20.27 20.27
Deletions - (12.87) (12.87)
Depreciaticn (refer note 26) (16.08) (17.37) (34.35)
Depraciation transferred to CWIP {5.63) - {5.63)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 383.08 37.03 420.11
Depreciation (refer note 25} (30.50) (6.75) (37.25})
Balance as at March 31, 2022 352.58 30.28 382.86
b) Current and non-current lease liabilities;
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Current lease liabilities 59.71 52.52
Non-current lease liabilities 377.18 400.02
Total 436.90 452.54
The fallowing |s the mavemant in lease liabilities during the year ended:
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the vear 452.54 465.73
Additians & 20.27
Deletians - (17.85)
Finance cost accrued during the year (refer note 25) 41.32 34.56
Finance cost transferred to CWIP - 9.09
Payment of [ease liabilities {56.96) {59.26)
Balance at the end of the year 436.90 452,54
The table below provides detalls regarding contractual maturities of lease liabillties on an undiscounted basis:
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Less than one year 62.11 56.85
One 1o five years 177.50 196.19
Mare than five years 604.18 647.61
Total B843.79 900.65

The Company doas not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities, 25 the current assets are sufficiant to meet the obligations related to |ease (labilities as and when they fall due.
3C. Capital work-in-progress

i} Ageing of capital work-in-progress:

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

|Balance as at March 31, 2022

Projects under progress 20,52 7.67 5.72 - 33,91
Prajects temporarily suspended = = . " -

Total 20.52 7.67 572 * 33.81
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Projects under progress 8.96 14.20 - - 23.16
Projects temporarily suspended - - m ’ .
Total 8.96 14.20 - = 23.16
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4. Goodwill

" As at
e 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Balance at beginning of year 30.30 30.30
Balance at end of the year 30.30 30.30

The Company has identified Techno Tools as a Cash Generating Units (CGU) and the goodwill has been allocated to this CGU for the purpose of
impairment testing. This goodwill is tested for impairment at least on an annual basis or more frequently when there is an indication for
impairment. The estimated value-in-use of this cash generating unit (CGU) is based on the future cash flows discounted at the rate of 14% for the
forecast period of 5 years and a nil terminal growth rate. An analysis of the sensitivity of the computation to a change in key parameters (operating
margin, discount rates), based on reasonably probable assumptions, did not identify any probable scenario in which the recoverable amount of the
CGU would decrease below its carrying amount.

5. Other intangible assets

As at

L il 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Carrying amount of:

Computer software 14.12 4.94
Total 14.12 4.4
Movement in the carrying amount of intangible assets is as below:

Particulars Computer software Total

I. Cost or deemed cost

Balance as at April 1, 2020 88.92 88.92
Additions 2.67 2.67
Balance as at March 31, 2021 91.59 91.59
Additions 16.15 16.15
Balance as at March 31, 2022 107.74 107.74
Il. Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at April 1, 2020 82.34 82.34
Amortisation for the year 431 4,31
Balance as at March 31, 2021 86.65 86.65
Amaortisation for the year 6.97 6.97
Balance as at March 31, 2022 93.62 93.62
Ill. Carrying amounts (I-11)

Balance as at March 31, 2021 4.94 4.94
[Balance as at March 31, 2022 14.12 14.12
§. Investments

Particulars As at

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Investments carried at fair value through other comprehensive income (unquoted)
Equity instruments in Mysore ESDM Cluster 3.22 3.22

Balance as at March 31, 2022 3.22 3.22

The Company is one of the founder promoters of the Mysore ESDM (Electronic Systems Design and Manufacturing) Cluster, an initiative of the
Government of India, to establish common facilities centre, for the development of ESDM companies in this region. The objective of the investment
Is not to obtain economic benefits through the activities and accordingly, the Company has not presented consolidated financial statements.
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_' 7. Other financial assets

As at
Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current
(at amortised cost)
Security deposits
- Unsecured, considered good 38.80 46.20
Total 38.80 46.20
Current
(at amortised cost)
Interest accrued on deposit accounts 21.19 12.46
Advance to employees 1.14 1.21
Others - 17.26
Total 22.33 30.93
8. Other assets
Particulars Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current :
(at amortised cost)
Capital advances 5.35 17.99
Deferred contract costs - 14.53
Prepaid expenses 2.76 3.07
Total 8.11 35.59
Current :
(at amortised cost)
Prepaid expenses 20.76 259.33
Advance to suppliers 277.87 131.93
Balances with government autharities 134.65 21.37
Deferred contract costs 14.53 2491
Other current assets 11.89 30.67
Total 455.70 238.21
9, Inventories
Particulars B dt
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Raw materials 2,219.90 1,190,73
Wark-in-progress 291.94 106.97
Finished goods 153.99 225.70
Consumables & stores 29.79 31.07
Total 2,695.62 1,554.47




Cylent DLM Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements

{All amounts in % millions, except share and per share data and where atharwise stated)

10, Trade receivables

Total

As at
Reeicyeny March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good* 1,599.78 2,348.57
Less; Allowance for expected credit loss [76.53) (84.74)
1,523.25 2,263.83

Trade receivables - credit impaired - unsecured 47.47 52.41
| Less : Allowance for cradit impairment (47.47) {52.41)
1,523.25 2,263.83

* includes amount receivable from relsted parties (refer note 30)

Note:
Expected Credit Loss (ECL):

The company's exposure to credit risk is Influsnced mainly h'v the individual characteristics of each customer, Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitaring
the creditworthiness of customers to which the company grants credit terms in the normal course of bus|ness. The average credit period is between 60-90 days. Before accepting any new customer, the Company

uses an Internal credit scoring system to assess the potential customer's credit quality and defines credit |imits for each customer, Limits and scoring attributed to customers ars reviewed onice a year.

As & practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss of Its trade receivables, The provision matrix is based on ts historically observed default rates over the expectad life of
the trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates, The ECL allowance {or reversal) during the year s recognised In the statement of profit and loss.

As at March 31, 2022

Ageing for receivables Not Due Less than 6 & months to 1 1-2 years 2-3years Mare than 3 Total
months vear vear
Undi | Trade Receivabl
Considered good 1,273.92 181.07 7221 22.76 3.57 36.25 1,589.78
Credit impaired - - = - = e ¥
Disputed Trade Receivables
Caonsidered good = = - - - .
Credit impaired - E - - 11.38 36,09 47.47
Total 1,273.92 191.07 7.1 22.76 14,95 12.34 1,647.25
Less : Allowance for credit impairment and expected credit |oss (124.00)
Balance at the end of the year 1,523.25
As at March 31, 2021
Ageing for receivables Not Due Less than 6 & months to 1 1-2years 2-3years Maore than 3 Total
__maonths vear vear
Undi: i Trade Rec
Considered good 1,531.33 729.40 3147 12.80 16.68 27.18 1,348.57
Creditimpaired - = - - - - -
Disy 1 Trade Receivabl
Considerad good - - - - . - -
Credit impairad - - - 11.48 2.11 38.81 5241
Balance at the end of the year 153133 729.40 3117 24.29 18.79 56.00 2,400.93
Less | Allowance jor credit impairment and expected credit loss [137.15)
Balance at the end of the year 2,263.83

Balance at the beginning of the year
Provizion made during the year (refer note 27)

keversal of prowsion an account of callection (refer note 27)
Balance at the end of the year

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance Asab
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
13715 12847
20.67 22.40
(33.82) (13.72)
124.00 137.15
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11: Cash and Bank Balances

11A, Cash and cash equivalents

Asat
Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balances with banks
in currant accounts 707.28 146.62
Cash an hand 0.01 0.07
Remittances in transit 51.28 .
Total 768.59 146.69
11B. Other bank balances
g As at
Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ceposits held as margin money/security for bank guarantees 449,49 135.07
Total 449.49 185.07

Deposits held as margin monay is towards non-fund based limits sanctioned by the bank far establishment of bank

guarantee and letter of credits,

Note :

Reconclliation of liabilities arising fram financing activities:

{a) For the year end Mar 31, 2022:

Asat As at
Particulars iarhids 3851 New Leases Proceads Repayment | Foreign exchange March 31, 2022
Non-current berrowings {including current pertian) 99563 - - - - 495,63
Current barrowings [net) 1342.02 - 2,551.91 {1,961.18) 355 1,936.30
Lease liabilities 452.54 4132 - [56.98) | 436.90
Total liabllities from financing activities 2,750.19 41.32 2,551.91 (2,018.14) 355 3,368.83
{b} For the year end March 31, 2021
As at As at
foul
Particulars March 31, 2020 New Leases Procesds Repayment Fareign exchange March 31, 2021
Non-current borrowings (including current portion) 781.42 - 230.00 {15.79) 595,63
Currant borrowings (net} 1,832.29 - 1,645.17 12,136.20) 0.76 1,342.02
Lease lisbilities 465.73 46.07 - {59.26} 452.54
Tatal liabilities from financing activities 3,079.44 46.07 1,875.17 {2,211.25) 0.76 2,790,139
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12. Equity share capital

Particulars As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Autharised share capital:
4,750,000 equity shares of % 10 each (March 31, 2021 : 4,750,000) 47,50 47.50
Issued and subscribed capital:
1,367,000 fully paid up equity shares of % 10 each {March 31, 2021: 1,367,000] 13.67 13.67
Total 13.67 13.67
Note:
{A) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

No of shares held Amount No of shares held Amount
Balance as at beginning of the year 13,67,000 13.67 13,67,000 13.67
Balance as at end of the year 13,67,000 13.67 13,67,000 13.67
(B) Details of shares held by each sharehalder holding more than 5% shares
Name of the shareholder As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
R ier alshiaras biatd % holding of equity Number of shares % holding of equity
shares held shares

Fully paid up equity shares
Cyient Limited {Holding company] 13,67,000 100.00% 13,67,000 100.00%]|

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders and other declarations received from the shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding

represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

{C) Details of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

As at March 31, 2022
Name of the promoter NPT of siares hed % holding of equity % Change during the
shares Year
Cyient Limited (Holding company) 13,67,000 100.00% -
As at March 31, 2021
Name of the promoter RimbaroPiba resaid % holding of equity % Change during the
shares Year
Cyient Limited (Holding company) 13,67,000 100.00% -

(D) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the
equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company in proportion to their shareholding.

13. Other equity

As at
Fs e March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

(a) General reserve 372 372

(b) Securities premium account 92.09 92.09
(¢} Retained earnings

(1) Opening balance 267.04 147.58

(i) Profit for the yvear 397.95 118.14

(iii} Other comprehensive Income (3.35) 1,32

661.64 267.04

Total 757.45 362.85

Notes ;

a) General reserve:

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one
component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be reclassified subseqguently to profit or |oss.

b} Securities premium reserve:

Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies

Act, 2013,

[c) Retained earnings

(il Retained earnings comprises of prior years’ undistributed earnings after taxes along with current year profit, net of dividends declared and dividend distribution tax thereon.

- (li) Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other

comprehensive income. These are presentad within retained earnings.
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14. Borrowings

. As at
Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-current- at amortised cost
Unsecured

Term loan from related party (refer note 30)* 995.63 640.00
Total 995.63 640.00
Current- at amortised cost
Unsecured

Current maturities of non-current borrowings = 355.63

Working capital loan from related party (refer note 30) 540.00 315.00
|Secured

Working capital loans frem banks 1,396.30 1,027.02
Total 1,936.30 1,697.65
Total borrowings 2,931.93 2,337.65

Details of the borrowings along with their terms and conditions:

a. Term loan from related party:
The Company has obtained term loan of X 1,000.00 from Cyient Limited for capital expenditure purpose, which is availed in various tranches

starting from February 2019 repayable in 16 quarterly instalments starting from June 2023. Outstanding balance of the term loan as at March 31,
2022 was X 995.63 (March 31, 2021: X 995.63). Rate of interest is 6.00% p.a. There is no default in the repayment of principal loan and interest
amount.

b. Working capital loan from related party:
The Company has availed working capital loan repayable on demand from Cyient Limited whose outstanding balance as at Mar 31, 2022 is X 540.00

(March 31, 2021: % 315.00). The rate of interest is 6.00% p.a.

c. Working capital loans from banks:
i. The Campany has availed working capital loans from various banks:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
HDFC Bank (Range of interest: 6,00% to 8.15% (March 31, 2021: 6.50% to 8.15%)) 449.41 580.45
State Bank of India {Range of interest: 6.8% (March 31, 2021: 7.00% to 9.60%)) 200.00 56.57
Federal Bank (Range of Interest: 6.00% to 7.00% (March 31, 2021: 5.00% to 7.70%)) 557.29 22.64

ii. The Company has availed packing credit facility from HDFC Bank and Federal Bank whose outstanding balance as at March 31, 2022 is X 189.60
(March 31, 2021 is X 367.36). The rate of interest on these facilities range from 1.45% to 1.89%.

Security terms for working capital loans from banks:

i. First pari-passu charge on present and future current assets including stock and book debts of the Company.

ii. 5econd pari-passu charge on all existing and future movable fixed assets of the Company.

iii. Corporate guarantee from Cyient Limited.

iv. The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Company with banks are in agreement with the books of accounts.
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15. Other financial liabilities

. As at
PRrRuIRg March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Non-Current

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings* 147.44 71.25
Total 147.44 71,25
Current

Capital creditors 6.99 28.17
Total 6.99 28.17
* includes amount payable to related parties (refer note 30)
16. Provisions

. As at
Fercan March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Gratuity (refer note 29) 50.92 41.02
Compensated absences (refer note 29) 22.05 25.11
Total provisions 72.97 66.13
Non-current:

Gratuity 40.28 31.39

Compensated absences 19.33 22.39
Total 59.61 53.78
Current:

Gratuity 10.64 9.63

Compensated absences 2.72 2.72
Total 13.36 12.35
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17, Income taxes
17.1 Tax Expense

A, Income tax expense/(benefit) recognised in the statement of profi loss

For the year ended | For the year ended
Farticilars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current tax
In respect of current year 96,35 2713
In respect of prior year - .
Minimum Alternate Tas {MAT] credit availed - [22.10]
96,35 5.03
taxes f
In respect of the current year {1151} 3278
In respect of prior year 2451 -
13.00 32.78
Tatal 109.35 37.81
8. Income tax benefit recagnised In other comprehensive income
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
March31.2022 | March31,2021 |
Income tax benefit recognised directly in equity consists of:
Tax effect on remeasurements of the net defined benefit labiliy 112 (0.52
Tatal 112 (0.52)
Bllurcation of the income tax Ised in ather comp Income Inta:
items that will not be reclassified ta profit or loss L12 (0.52)

\tems that may be reclassified to profit or loss

. Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars

The fallowing is the reconcliation of the campany's effective tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2022 and 2021

For the year ended
march 31, 2022 _|

For the year ended

March 31, 2021

Prafit before tax 507.30 155.95
Enacied rie in india 25.17% 31.20%
G | tax exp 127,69 48.66
Tax effect of adj to reconcile exy d tax exp
Deterred tax asset not recogrsed szrlier/ (deferred tax lability reversing] during tax haliday period |14.58) (10,22}
Reversal of deferred 1ax asset recognised on tax losses - B.43
Others [3.78) {7.08
Intome tax expense 109,35 37.81




Cyient DLM Private Limited
Notes farming part of the financial statements
[All amounts i T millions, except share and per share data and where otherwise stated)

17.2. Deferred tax assets and liabilities

A, The fallowing Is the analysls of deferrad tax assets/{llabilities) nresented in the balance sheet:

Asat
Pt March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Deferred tax assets

Prowsion for doubtiul debts Lz 34,52

Section 438 disallowances 22.80 20,02

MAT Credit Entitlement = 2451

Right of use assets/|ease liabilities {refer note 38) 13.60 {415,
Tatal (&) 67.61 74.91
Deferred tax liabilitles

Property, plant and eguipment & intanglble zssets |28.83] {24.06
Total (8] (28.63 (24.05
Deferred tax asset, net (A48} 38.88 sa,é

Deferred tax assets have been recognised considenng the utilisation plzn zgainst future takable profits which are supportad by existing and future sale orders.

17.3. Income tax assets and labilities

The following is the analysis of income tax assets/{liabilities) p in the Company balance sheet: Asat
March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021 |
Income tax assets, net
Advances i 5.03 5.84
Income tax liabi
Income tax payahle 60.63 2713
18, Other liahilitles
Particulars et
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Naon-Current
Advance from customers 260.83 17.44
Tetal 260.83 17.44
Current
Advance from customers 113483 1,139.02
Statutory dues 7.57 5.27
Other currant habilities 13.08 28.94
Total 1,155.48 1,173.23
19, Trade Payables
Particulars o2 ]
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(st amortised cost)
[¢) toral outstanding dues of micro enterpnses and small enterprises (MSME) 32.08 60.60
il 1otal cutstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterrises * 1.892.75 1.839 65
Taotal 1,924.85 1,900.25
“includes amaount payable to related parties (refer note 30}
Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on S0-day terms
As at March 31, 2022
Ageing for trade payable Unbllled Not Dus Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Tatal
— 1] S—
Dues 1o MSME : 32,06 - - - = 32.06
Lies 1o others than MSME 716.40 672.58 503.81 . = . 1.89279
Wisputen dues - Dues 1o MSME - . - = 3
tisgruted dues - Dues 10 other than MSME . = 3 - - .
Balance at the and of the year 716.40 J04.64 503.81 = - - 1,924.85
As at March 31, 2021
Ageing for trade payable Unbilled Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2years 2-3 years Mare than 3 Total
I Wears
Phues 1o MSME = 38,63 2097 . = £ 6060
Dues to ather than MSME 546,34 707.09 586.22 . s . 1,839.65

Dsputed dues - Dues 1o MSME

Disputed dues - Dues to other than MSME - - .
Balance at the end of the year 546.34 746.72 607.19 - . - 1,800.25
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20. Revenue from operations

padisilars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sale of goods 7,155.57 6,239.96
Rendering of services 49.76 40.32
Total 7,205.33 6,280.28
The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in the staterent of profit and loss.
1.Disaggregated revenue information
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Type of goods or service

Sale of printed circuit boards 7,155.57 6,239.96

Job work charges 49.76 40.32
Total 7,205.33 6,280.28
Based on geographical location of customers

Within India 3,964.10 3,585.09

Cutside India 3,241.23 2,295.19
Total 7,205.33 6,280.28
Timing of revenue recognition

Goods transferred at a point in time 7,155.57 6,239.96

Services transferred paint In time 49.76 40.32
Total 7,205.33 6,280.28

2. Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations:

The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognised as at the end of the reporting period
and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognise these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has

not disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts that have original expected duration of one year or |ess.

21. Other income

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost
Bank deposits 16.09 17.59
16.09 17.59
Other non-operating income
Export incentives (refer note below) 45.28 46,88
Reversal of expected credit loss allowance (net) (refer note 10) 13,15 -
Bad debts recovered 3.49
Liabilities no longer required, written back - 14.55
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 0.94
Foreign exchange gain (net) 0.23 -
Miscellaneous income 0.33 9.81
63.42 71.24
Total 79.51 88.83
Note:

Recognised upon satisfying the specified conditions under the applicable scheme defined by the Government of India.
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22. Cost of materials consumed

< For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Opening stock 1,190.73 1,686.58
Add: Purchases 6,582.05 4,282.67
Less: Closing stock (2,219.90) (1,190.73)
Cost of materials consumed 5,552.88 4,778.52

23. Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Opening Stock:

Finished goods 225.70 366.76
Work-in-progress 106.97 140.32
332.67 507.08

Closing Stock:
Finished goods 153.99 225.70
Work-in-progress 291.94 106.97
445,93 332.67
Net (Increase) / Decrease (113.26) 174.41

24. Employee benefits expense

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries and wages, including bonus 477.28 414.83
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 29) 5.99 25.96
Share based payments to employees 0.78 -
Staff welfare expenses 32.47 27.84
Total 516.52 468.63

25. Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest expense
Interest on horrowings from banks 96.79 95.80
Interest on borrowings from related parties (refer note 30) 81.64 77.34
Interest on lease liabilities (refer note 3B) 41.32 34.56
Total 219.75 207.70
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26, Depreciation and amortisation expense

Partienlars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {refer note 3A) 148.64 145.96
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {refer note 38) 37.25 34.35
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 5) 6.97 4.31
Total 192.86 184.62
27, Other expenses
R For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rates and taxes 5.32 0.72
Insurance 17.18 17.42
Stores and spares consumed 29.05 15.44
Freight autwards 133.14 101.05
Travelling and conveyance 3.77 2.82
Communication 231 1.44
Printing and stationery 1.10 1.01
Power and fuel 33.48 30.29
Marketing expenses 68.98 62.78
Repairs and maintenance
- Machinery 28.22 18.44
- Others 3.69 8.95

Legal and professional charges 29.76 27.75
Expenditure for Corporate Social Responsibility 1.30 -
Foreign exchange loss (net) B 6171
Expected credit loss allowance (net) (refer note 10) - 8.68
Auditors' remuneration™

-For statutory audit 1.55 1.40

Far reimbursement of expenses 0.01 0.03
Training and development 2.88 114
Miscellaneous expenses 47.05 34.21
Total 408.79 399.28

* Exclusive of applicable taxes

Notes:
i. Expenditure for Corporate Social Responsibility:

The Company contributes towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities through Cyient Foundation (refer note 30). The
Company has formed CSR committee as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 to formulate and recommend to the Board, a
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the company as specified by law. The
areas for CSR activities are promoting education, adoption of schools, facilitating skill development, medical and other social
projects, Expenses incurred on CSR activities are charged to the statement of profit and loss under 'Other Expenses': T 1.30

(March 31, 2021: X Nil),

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company 1.29
Actual amount spent
1. Construction / acquisition of any asset
2. On purposes other than (1) above (in cash) 1.30
(Shortfall)/ Excess 0.01 -

Heads of CSR Expenditure:

Particulars

For the period ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Promotion of education

1.30
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28, Contingent liabilities and Commitments

As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

(A) Contingent liabilities:
Claims agalnst the Company not acknowledged as debt:

(i) Pending statutory forms (C/H/1) - 7.79

- 7.79

(B) Commitments:
(i} Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and nat provided for (net of capital advances) 44.08) 33.82
Total 44.06 41.61

29, Employee benefits:
The employee benefit schemes are as under:

1 Defined contribution plans
i. Provident fund:

The Company makes provident fund contributions which are defined contribution plans for qualifying employees. Under the scheme, the Company is required to
contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. These contributions are made to the Fund administered and managed by the Government of
India. The Company's maonthly contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss In the period they are Incurred. Total expense recognised during the year
aggregated to ® 18.65 (2020-21 : % 16.49). Further, the Company has reversed provision amounting to % 18.10 in respect of the period from March 2015 to February 2018

towards PF Liability based on final proceedings before Assistant PF Commissioner.
2 Defined Benefit Plans
i, Gratuity:

In accordance with the 'Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972' of India, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined retirement benefit plan {the ‘Gratuity Plan') covering eligible
employees. Liabilities with regard to such gratuity plan are determined by an independent actuarial valuation and are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
period determined. The gratuity plan is administered by the Company's own trust which has subscribed to the "Group Gratuity Scheme" of Life Insurance Corporation of

India.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation (DBO), and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit

method.
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Discount rate (%)

7.46%

6.99%

Salary increase rate (%)

10.00%

10.00%

Attrition (%)

8.00%

8.00%

Mortality table

IALM [2012-14] Ultimate

IALM (2012-14) Ultimate

S8 years

Retirement age

58 years

The following table sets out the defined benefit costs as per actuarial valuation for the Company.
Amounts recognised in statement of profit and loss In respact of these defined benefit plans are as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Current service cost

5.08

6.95

MNet interest cost

Interest expense on defined benefit obligation

2.44

4.51

Interest income on plan assets

(2.08)

{1.89)

Defined benefit cost included in P&L

5.44

9.47

Remeasurement effects recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2021

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to demographic assumptions change in defined benefit obligation

Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due ta Financial assumptions change in defined benefit obligation

0.98

(2.16)

|Actuarial (Gain) / Loss due to Experience on defined benefit obligation

2.71

0.32

Return on plan assets (Greater)/Less than discount rate

0.78

4.47

-1.84

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit

Particulars

plans is as follows:

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation

79.85

72.85

(28.93)

(31.83)

Fair value of plan assets

Net liability arising from defined benefit obligation

50.92

41.02
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Plan Assets at the end of the year

For the year ended For the year ended
Miovement in the present value of the defined benefit obligation March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 72.85 65.75
Current service cost 5.08 6.95
Interest cost 2.44 4.51
Actuarial loss/|gain} 3.62 -1.84
Benefits paid (4.21) (2.52)
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 79.85 72.85
Change in Plan assets For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 31,83 27.04
Return on plan assets 2,08 1.99
Employer contribution 0.01 5.32
Benefits paid {4.21) (2.52)
Asset (loss)/Gain (0.78) -
28.93 31.83

The average rate of increase in compensation levels is determined by the Company, considering factors such as, the Company's past compensation revision trends and
B P

management's estimate of future salary increases,

Composition of plan assets

Plan assets comprise of 100% insurer managed funds. Fund is managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India as per Insurance Regulatory and Development Autharity of

India (IRDA) guidelines, category wise compasition of the plan assets is not available.

Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined

benefit abligation by the amounts shown below.

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% mavement) (7.48) 8.71 (7.20) 8.43
Future salary growth (1% movement) 2.08 (7.14) 7.91 (6.59)

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (discounted cash flows):

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Within 1 year 4.02 3.48
1-2 year 3.72 3.10
2-3 year 4.94 2.92
3-4 year 3.14 4.68
4-5 year 4,01 2.49
5-10 year 17.35 16.17
Payouts above 10 years 42.67 40.00

ii, Assumptions for compensated absences:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Discount rate (%) 7.46% 6.95%

Salary increase rate {%) 10.00% 10.00%
Attrition (%) B.00% 8.00%

Leave avallment ratio 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality takite IALM {2012-14) Ultimate IALM {2012-14) Ultimate
Retitemment age 58 years 58 years

The acerual for unutilised leave is determined for the entire available leave balance standing to the cradit of the employees at year-end as per Company's policy. The value
of such leave balance eligible for carry forward, is determined by an independent actuarial valuation and charged to Statement of Profit and Loss In the period determined.

The average rate of increase in compensation levels s determined by the Company, considering factars such as, the Company's past compensation revision trends and

management’s estimate of future salary increases,
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30. Related Party Transactions

(i) The list of related parties of the Company is given below:

Name of the related party

Nature of relationship

Cyient Limited

Holding company

Cyient Inc.

Fellow subsidiary

Cyient GmbH

Fellow subsidiary

Cyient Singapore

Fellow subsidiary

Cyient Israel India Limited

Fellow subsidiary

Key Managerial Personnel:

Krishna Bodanapu Directar

Ajay Aggarwal Director

Rajendra Velagapudi Managing Director & CEQ

Suchitra R C Additional Director & Vice President
Operations

Parvati Ramachandra Company Secretary

(i) Summary of the transactions with the above related parties are as follows:

Nature of the transaction Party name For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue from operations Cyient Limited 10.85 10.91
Cyient Inc. 1.24 6.52
Marketing expenses Cyient Israel India Limited 15.01 20.00
Purchases of goods Cyient Limited E 8.23
Cyient Limited 37.38 37.09
Reimbursement of expenses CVTEHF G.mbH 229 -
Cyient Singapore 6.81 -
Cyient Inc. 45.84 22.64
Loans received Cyient Limited 825.00 530.00
Loans paid Cyient Limited 600.00 300.00
Interest on loan from holdine company Cyient Limited 81.64 77.34
Parvati Ramachandra™ 1.58 1.30
Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel Rajendra Velagapudi **' 16.15 12.06
Suchitra R ¢ " 7.43 6.26

#1 The above figures do not include provisions for leave encashment, gratuity and premium paid for group health insurance, as separate actuari

valuation / premium paid are not available.

al

* Managerial remuneration to Mr. Rajendra Velagapudi (Managing Director & CEQ) is paid by Cyient Limited, Holding Company and is recharged to

the Company.

(i) Balances at the year-end:

Nature of the transaction Party name As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Cyient Limited 11.84 -
Trade Receivables Cyient Inc. 2.98 6.12
Cyient GmbH - 0.33
Cyient Limited 254.96 218.55
Cyient GmbH 3.03 -
Trade Payables Cyient Singapore 6.83 2
Cyient Israel India Limited 46.03 44.53
Cyient Inc. 69.39 22.96
Advance from customer Cyient Limited 7.20 7.20
Corporate guarantee outstanding Cyient Limited 4,520.00 4,520.00
Loans outstanding Cyient Limited 1,535.63 1,310.63
Interest on loans outstanding Cyient Limited 145.47 70.75

31. Earnings per share

36. Other statutory information

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Profit for the year

Basic and diluted:
Number of equity shares outstanding at the year end
Weighted average number of equity shares
tarnings per share (%)

397.95

13,67,000
13,67,000
291.11

118.14

13,67,000
13,67,000
86.42
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32. Financial Instruments

32.1 Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it maximises the return to stakeholders through the optimisatian of the capital structure. The Company monitors the return on capital. In
order to optimise the Company's position with regards to its borrawings, interest income and interest expense, treasury team performs a comprehensive corporate interest risk
management by balancing the proportion of fixed rate and floating rate financial instruments in its total portfalio,

32.1.1 Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at end of the reporting period is as follows.

As at
skl March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Borrowings from banks® 1,396.30 1,027.02
Less: Cash and bank balances {1,218.08) (341.76)
Net debt 178.22 685.26
Total equity 771.12 376.52
Net debt to equity 23% 182%

* Includes current, non-current and current maturities of non-current borrowings from banks (refer note 14)

32.1.2 : Financial Instruments by category

Carrying value as at

Particulars

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Financial assets:
Amortised cost
Trade receivables 1,523.25 2,263.83
Cash and cash equivalents 768.59 146.69
Other bank balances 449.49 195.07
Other financial assets 61,13 7713
Fair value through other comprehensive income
Investments in ather equity instruments (Unquoted) 3.22 3.22
Total financial assets 2,805.68 2,685.94
Financial liabilities:
Amortised cost
Borrowings® 2,931.93 2,337.65
Trade payables 1,924.85 1,900.25
Lease liakilities 436.90 452.54
Other hnancial liabilities 154.43 99.42
Tatal financial liabilities 5,448.11 4,789.36

* Includes current, non-current and current maturities of non-current borrowings from banks (refer note 14)

The management assessed that fair value of cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances, trade receivables, other financial assets, loans and deposits, trade payables, borrowings,
lease |labilities and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments, and hence these are carried at amortised
cost

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities 15 included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, ather than in a
furced or llguidation sale.

32.2 Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's primary focus is ta foresee the unpredictability of financial
markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary market risk to the Company is foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk. The
Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristic of sach customer. The liquidity risk 1s measured by the Company's Inability to meet its financial
obligations as they become due.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company operates internationally and a major portion of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently the Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through
its sales and services and purchases from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies. The exchange rate between the rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent
years and may fluctuate substantially in the future. Consequently, the results of the Company's operations are adversely affected as the rupee appreciates/ depreciates against these
currencies The Company monitors and manages its financial risks by analysing its foreign exchange EXpOSUres.
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Sensitivity analysis:
Far the year ended March 31, 2022, every 5% increase / decrease of the respective foreign currencies compared to functional currency of the Company would impact by 2 29.25 (for year

ended March 31, 2021: X 43.04).

Interest Risk
There is no mater|al intarest risk relating to the Company's financial liabilities which are detailed in note 14.

Cradit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financlal |oss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument falls to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the

Company's receivables from customers, Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitaring the creditworthiness of customers to which
the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its estimate of expected
losses in respect of trade receivables.

The Company's exposure to credit risk 1s influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry
and country in which the customer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment,

The following table gives details in respect of percentage of total receivables from top five customers and others:

As at
icul
feitlias Wiarch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Receivable from top 5 custamers 79% 72%
Others 21% 28%
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial abligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Comgany's

reputation,
As of 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, the Company had unutilized credit limits from banks of X 427.94 & % 588.37 respectively.
The Company had working capital of T 761.66 (March 31, 2021: % (462.10), including cash and bank balances of ® 1218.08 (March 31, 2021: 2 341.76)

The table below pravides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities (excluding barrowings and lease liabilities) as at March 31, 2022:

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 years and more

Trade payables 1,924.85 = E
Other financial liabilities 6.99 = =
Total 1,931.84 = =

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial llabilities (excluding borrowings and lease |iabilities) as at March 31, 2021-

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 years and mare
Trade and other payables 1,900.25 -

Other financial habilities 2817 - -
Total 1,928.42 - -

The Company's obligation towards payment of borrowings has been included in note 14 and 15.
The Company's obligation towards payment of lease liabilities has been Includad In note 38,
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33. Sepment information
The Company's operations fall within a single operating segment "Electronic manufacturing solutions” which |s considered as the primary reportable business segment.

The reporting of geographical segments is based on the location of customers |.e., Domastic (Within India) and Overseas (Outside India).

Geographical segment information

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Within India Outside India Total Within India | Outside India Total
Revenue from operations 3,964.10 3,241.23 7,205.33 3,985.09 2,295.19 6,280.28
MNon-current assets* 1,764.13 - 1,764.13 1,914.99 - 1,914.99

*Geographical non-current assets (property , plant and equipment, right of use assets, capital work-in-progress, goodwill, intangible assets and other non-current assets) are
allocated based on location of assets.

Information about major customers

For year ended
Particulars 31-Mar-22 Percentage 31-Mar-21 Percentage
Revenue from top customers {*) 3,527.80 48.96% 2,795.09 44.51%
Others 3,677.53 51.04% 3,485,19 55.49%
Total Revenue 7,205.33 100.00% 6,280.28 100.00%
* Includes revenue from customers individually amounting to 10% or more of the Company's revenues.
34. Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006
Particulars As at
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
(i} Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 32.06 60.60

(ii} Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year

the appointed day

(iii} The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyand

{iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year

(v} The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting year

(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actually paid

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of infarmation collected by the Management,

35, Ratio Analysis and its elements

Ratlo Numerator D, i 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 % change Reasons
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.15 .51 26.74%|Note 1 (a)
Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 4.37 741 -41.05%|Note 1 (b)
Earnings for debt service =
G aikew Debt service = Interest &
Net profit after taxes + Non EEs
Debt Service Coverage ratio cashiopersting Lease Payments + Principal 0.36 0.23 59,56%|Nate 1 {b)
expenses+Finance costs fiepayments
g Average §| Ider’
Return on Equity ratio Net Profits after taxes Equir'.rgE harehoiders 0.69 0.37 85.96%|Note 1 (b)
inventory Turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 261 2.53 3.36%
! . ) Net credit sales = Gross
I"rade Receivable Turnover Ratio chedit salas walge etur Average Trade Recejvable 3.81 4.47 -14.88%
Nzt credit purchases =
Trade Payahle Turnover Ratio Gross credit purchases - Average Trade Payables 3.44 2.90/ 18.48%
purchase return
; Net sales = Total sales - Woaorking capital = Current
Net Capital Tur Ratio ; -169.
g MR sales return assets — Current lizbilities 46 112,59 HeRbReNat L)
. I les = Total sales -
Net Prafit ratio Net Profit s;:::;zm i 0.06 0.02 193.60%|Note 1 (b)
Earnings before interest  [Capital Employed = Tangible
Return on Capital Employed
alaliat e and taxes Net Worth + Total Debt* L 9:13 <2335  Nete 2 4b}
Return on Investment# Interest {Finance Income}  |Average Investment a 5 %

# The Company does not have any income generated on investments,

*Debt represents lease liabilities,

‘Note 1:Improvement in ratio is due to:
a. Higher efficiency resulting in improved working capital
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36. Other statutory information
i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has bieen initlated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property,
(1) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
{iif) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
{Iv) The Company has not traded or invested In Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financlal year.
(v) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or gavernment or any government authority,
(vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or Indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
{vii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Group shall;
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries); or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
(viii) The Company has not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Incame Tax Act, 1961.

37. The code of Social Security, 2020 {'Code') relating to employee benefits during employment and post-employment received Presidential assent in September 2020 and its
effective date |s vet to be notified. The Company will assess and record the impact of the Cade, once it is effective.

38. Previous year figures have been regrouped / reclassified, where necessary, to conform to this year's classification.

Accompanying notes foerm an integral part of the financial statements
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